
 
Town of Discovery Bay Board of Directors 

Meeting Agenda for March 20, 2024  
 - Pg.1 

 

 
 
 
NOTICE OF THE REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
Wednesday March 20, 2024 7:00 P.M. 
 
 
TO ATTEND IN PERSON: The meeting will be held at the Community Center located at 1601 Discovery Bay 
Boulevard. 
 
In addition to physical attendance at the address indicated above, the Town of Discovery Bay Community 
Services District is offering the following teleconferencing options as an alternative means for the public to 
participate in this meeting. 
 
TO ATTEND BY ZOOM WEBINAR: https://us06web.zoom.us/j/85454370841 
 
TO ATTEND BY PHONE: +1 (669) 444 9171 or +1 (719) 359 4580 WEBINAR ID: 854 5437 0841  

 
 

Download Agenda Packet and Materials at http://www.todb.ca.gov/  
 
REGULAR MEETING 7:00 P.M. 
A. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

1. Call business meeting to order 7:00 p.m. 
2. Pledge of Allegiance. 
3. Roll Call. 
  
 

B. PUBLIC COMMENTS (Individual Public Comments will be limited to a 3-minute time limit) 
During Public Comments, the public may address the Board on any issue within the District’s jurisdiction 
which is not on the Agenda. The public may comment on any item on the Agenda at the time the item is 
before the Board for consideration. Any person wishing to speak will have 3 minutes to make their comment. 
There will be no dialog between the Board and the commenter as the law strictly limits the ability of Board 
members to discuss matters not on the agenda. We ask that you refrain from personal attacks during 
comment, and that you address all comments to the Board only. Any clarifying questions from the Board 
must go through the President. Comments from the public do not necessarily reflect the viewpoint of the 
Directors. 
 
 

C. CONSENT CALENDAR 
All matters listed under the CONSENT CALENDAR are considered by the District to be routine and will be 
enacted by one motion. 
1. Approve Regular Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting minutes from March 6, 2024. 
2. Approve Register of District Invoices.   

 
 

D. PRESENTATIONS 
 
 
 
 
 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
A COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

 
 

President – Michael Callahan • Vice-President – Carolyn Graham  • Director – Kevin Graves • Director – Bryon Gutow • Director – Ashley Porter 
 

 

SDLF Platinum-Level of Governance 

http://www.todb.ca.gov/


 
Town of Discovery Bay Board of Directors 

Meeting Agenda for March 20, 2024  
 - Pg.2 

 

E. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION 
 1. Discussion and Possible Action to Approve Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Audited Financial Statements.  
 2. Discussion and Possible Action Regarding the Emergency Replacement of a Failed Retaining Wall  
  at the Community Center and Approving Resolution No. 2024-03, Adopting a CEQA Notice    
  of Exemption, Approving the Project and Directing Filing of the Notice of Exemption. 

3. Discussion and Possible Action to Adopt a New Commercial Card Program. 
 

 
F.    MANAGER’S REPORT 
        
         
G.    GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 
   
 
H. DIRECTOR REPORTS 
  
 
I. DIRECTORS REGIONAL MEETING AND TRAINING REPORT 
 1. BUSD Board Workshop – February 1, 2024 (Director Kevin Graves). 
 2. BUSD Board Meeting – February 22, 2024 (Director Kevin Graves). 
 
 
J.  CORRESPONDENCE 
 
  
K.  LEGAL REPORT 
 
 
L.  FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
 
 
M.  ADJOURNMENT     

1. Adjourn to the next Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors on April 3, 2024 beginning at 7:00 p.m. at 
the Community Center located at 1601 Discovery Bay Boulevard.  

 
“This agenda shall be made available upon request in alternative formats to persons with a disability, as required 
by the American with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. § 12132) and the Ralph M. Brown Act (California 
Government Code § 54954.2). Persons requesting a disability related modification or accommodation in order to 
participate in the meeting should contact the Town of Discovery Bay, at (925) 634-1131, during regular business 
hours, at least forty-eight hours prior to the time of the meeting.” 
 
"Materials related to an item on the Agenda submitted to the Town of Discovery Bay after distribution of the 
agenda packet are available for public inspection in the District Office located at 1800 Willow Lake Road during 
normal business hours." 



Town of Discovery Bay Board of Directors 
Meeting Minutes for March 6, 2024  

- Pg.1 

 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
Wednesday March 6, 2024 7:00 P.M. 

REGULAR MEETING 7:00 P.M. 
A. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

1. Called business meeting to order 7:00 p.m.
2. Vice President Graham led the Pledge of Allegiance.
3. Roll Call was taken, and all members were present.

B. PUBLIC COMMENTS (Individual Public Comments will be limited to a 3-minute time limit)
None.

C. CONSENT CALENDAR
All matters listed under the CONSENT CALENDAR are considered by the District to be routine and will be
enacted by one motion.
1. Approve Regular Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting minutes from February 21, 2024.
2. Approve Register of District Invoices.

Director Porter made a Motion to Approve the Consent Calendar.
Vice-President Graham seconded.
Vote: Motion carried – AYES: 5, NOES: 0, ABSTAINED: 0, ABSENT: 0.

D. AREA AGENCIES AND LIAISON REPORTS / PRESENTATIONS
1. Supervisor Diane Burgis, District III Report.

None.

2. Sheriff’s Office Report.

Presented by Lt. Charlene Jacquez.

• There were 311 calls for service. Of those 311 calls, 49 reports were written, and 12 arrests were
made.

• There were robberies at both Safeway and CVS.
• National Prescription Drug Take Back Day will be on Saturday, April 27, 2024.
• Junior Women’s Academy is June 11-13, 2024.

3. Contra Costa County Fire Protection District Report.
None.

E. MUNICIPAL ADVISORY COUNCIL
None.

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
A COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

President – Michael Callahan • Vice-President – Carolyn Graham  • Director – Kevin Graves • Director – Bryon Gutow • Director – Ashley Porter 

SDLF Platinum-Level of Governance 

C1



 

 
Town of Discovery Bay Board of Directors 

Meeting Minutes for March 6, 2024  
 - Pg.2 

 

F. PRESENTATIONS 
1. Water and Wastewater Rate Study Presentation. 
 
 Presented by Alison Lechowicz with Lechowicz and Tseng. 
 

• The last Water & Wastewater Rate Study was done in 2020. 
• Inflationary increases are needed for operations. 
• Funding is needed for upcoming projects such as: Water Pipeline Replacement, Underwater 

Crossings, and District Office Building. 
• Public Hearing would tentatively be June 5th or June 19th. 
• If approved, rates would go into effect July 1, 2024. 

 
 
G. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION 

1. Discussion and Possible Action to Approve the Parks and Recreation 2024 Programs, Activities,   
  and Event Fee Waivers. 

 
 Presented by Landscape Manager Monica Gallo. 
 

• Each year the General Manger has waived the fees for Scouts of America Troop 514, the Annual 
Easter Egg Hunt, and two Summer Jam concerts. 

• Staff requests that the Board approve the waivers for 2024. 
• Director Gutow recused himself as he is on the Board for the Lions Club. 

 
   Vice-President Graham made a motion to accept the 2024 Programs, Activities, and Event Fee Waivers 
  by the General Manager for a total amount of $2,895.00. 
  Director Porter seconded. 
  Vote: Motion carried – AYES: 4 – Callahan, Graham, Graves, Porter, NOES: 0, ABSTAINED: 1 - Gutow, 
  ABSENT: 0. 

 
2. Discussion and Possible Action to Approve the 2024 Parks and Recreation Public Event    

  Calendar. 
 
 Presented by Landscape Manager Monica Gallo. 
 

• Annual Events include Easter Egg Hunt, Pickleball Tournament, Car Show, Summer Jam, Movies in 
the Park, Flick ‘n Float, Paws on Parade and Cocoa with Santa/Tree Lighting. 

• Director Gutow recused himself as he is on the Board for the Lions Club. 
 
  Director Graves made a motion to approve staff recommendation to approve the Parks and Recreation 
  Public Event Calendar for 2024. 
  Director Porter seconded. 
  Vote: Motion carried – AYES: 4 – Callahan, Graham, Graves, Porter, NOES: 0, ABSTAINED: 1 - Gutow, 
  ABSENT: 0. 

 
3. Discussion and Possible Action Regarding the Town’s participation in the Discovery Bay Yacht Club’s  

  Opening Day Parade. 
 
 Presented by General Manager Dina Breitstein. 
 

• The Yacht Club is holding their Annual Opening Day Boat Parade on April 13, 2024. 
• The Town was invited to participate in the parade. 
• Staff has no recommendation. If the Board of Directors wish to participate in the Opening Day Parade, 

the recommended action would be to authorize the General Manager to coordinate entry and approve 
related expenses from the appropriate revenue sources up to an amount to be determined by the 
Board of Directors. 

• Vice-President Graham recused herself as she is the parade organizer on behalf of the Yacht Club. 
• Legal Counsel Andy Pinasco stated that staff can choose to volunteer but the Town cannot require 

Staff to participate in the event. 
 

C1



 

 
Town of Discovery Bay Board of Directors 

Meeting Minutes for March 6, 2024  
 - Pg.3 

 

Director Graves made a motion to give the Board permission to participate in the parade with a budget 
not to exceed $300 if the Board feels they have the capacity to do it. 
Director Gutow seconded. 
Vote: Motion Failed – Ayes: 0, NOES: 4 – Porter, Gutow, Graves, Callahan, ABSTAINED: 1 – Graham, 
ABSENT: 0. 

 
H.    MANAGER’S REPORT 
       None. 
 
I.      GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT  
  
 General Manager Dina Breitstein had five updates. 

• CSDA Legislative Days is May 21-22, 2024 in Sacramento. 
• Town received approval from the SWRCB to abandon and decommission Well 5A. 
• The Town had an opening for a maintenance/landscape worker. A current employee will be 

transitioning into their new position.  A former employee will be returning to join town staff. 
• The Town received the insurance check for the crane truck accident. 
• The Town will be hiring a new Recreation Coordinator.  Monica Gallo will transition into the 

Landscape Manager position. 
 
J. DIRECTOR REPORTS 
 1. Standing Committee Reports. 

a. Communications Committee Meeting (Committee Members Bryon Gutow and Carolyn Graham) 
March 6, 2024. 

 
• Director Gutow reported the Committee met and discussed whether the Committee should 

meet “as needed” in the future.  Committee could not come to a consensus. 
 

b. Parks & Recreation Committee Meeting (Committee Members Michael Callahan and Bryon 
Gutow) March 6, 2024. 

 
• Director Gutow reported that the Committee received Park and Landscape updates from 

Monica Gallo as well as the items that she presented earlier at the Board meeting. 
 

c. Water and Wastewater Committee Meeting (Committee Members Kevin Graves and Ashley 
Porter) March 6, 2024. 

 
• Director Graves reported that the Committee discussed updating the SCADA system at the 

Newport Lift Station as well as the new District Office Building. 
  
 
K. DIRECTORS REGIONAL MEETING AND TRAINING REPORTS 
 None. 
 
L.  CORRESPONDENCE 
  None. 
  
M.  LEGAL REPORT 
 
 Legal Counsel Andy Pinasco let the Board know that soon he will be emailing the annual General 
 Manager  Evaluation. This item is expected to come to an April Board of Directors meeting. 
 
N.  FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
 None. 
 
O.  ADJOURNMENT     

1. Adjourned at 7:58p.m. to the next Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors on March 20, 2024 
beginning at 7:00 p.m. at the Community Center located at 1601 Discovery Bay Boulevard.  

 

C1



 
 
 
 
 
 
Agenda Title: Approve Register of District Invoices. 
 
Meeting Date: March 20, 2024 
 
Prepared By: Margaret Moggia, Finance Manager & Lesley Marable, Accountant 
 
Submitted By: Dina Breitstein, General Manager 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
Staff recommends that the Board approve the listed invoices for payment. 
 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
 
District invoices are paid on a regular basis and must obtain Board authorization prior to payment.  Staff 
recommends Board authorization in order that the District can continue to pay warrants in a timely manner. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
Amount Requested:  $ 285,828.68 
Sufficient Budgeted Funds Available?:  Yes   (If no, see attached fiscal analysis) 
Prog/Fund #    See listing of invoices.  Category:  Operating Expenses and Capital Improvements        
 
 
PREVIOUS RELEVANT BOARD ACTIONS FOR THIS ITEM: 
 
 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
1. Request for Authorization to Pay Invoices for the Town of Discovery Bay CSD  2023/2024 
 

Town of Discovery Bay 
“A Community Services District” 

STAFF REPORT 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM: 
C2 

 



         Request for Authorization to Pay Invoices

Pacific Gas & Electric $71,539.69

Syblon Reid $70,033.12

Badger Meter $35,197.33

Luhdorff & Scalmanini $33,431.18

U.S. Bank Corporate Payment System $22,468.02

BSK Associates $17,474.50

BrightView Landscape Services, Inc. $8,770.00

Mt Diablo Resource Recovery $8,470.21

Herwit Engineering $5,400.00

HASA INC $3,257.90

Karina Dugand $1,397.25

ULINE $1,242.39

Belkorp AG $1,110.40

Caselle, Inc. $1,000.00

National Aquatic Services, Inc. $700.00

Kevin Graves $575.00

Michelle Dominge $517.50

Carolyn Graham $460.00

Ashley Porter $345.00

Smeared Paint $315.00

Brentwood Ace Hardware $312.77

Quadient Leasing USA, Inc. $302.26

Bryon Gutow $230.00

Michael Callahan $230.00

Denalect Alarm Company $228.00

Geotab USA, Inc. $217.25

ODP Office Solutions, LLC $171.40

Core & Main LP $107.06

Shred City $99.00

Dennis Dean Allen $90.00

Discovery Pest Control $70.00

UniFirst Corporation $41.43

Verizon Wireless $25.02

$285,828.68

For The Meeting On March 20, 2024
Town of Discovery Bay CSD

Fiscal Year 7/23 - 6/24

C2-1



Page 1 of 2 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Agenda Title: Discussion and Possible Action to Approve Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Audited Financial Statements. 
 
Meeting Date: March 20, 2024 
 
Prepared By: Margaret Moggia, Finance Manager 
 
Submitted By: Dina Breitstein, General Manager 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
 Accept and approve the Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Audited Financial Statements.  
 
 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
  
Executive Summary 
 
Government Code 53891. (a) States that the officer of each local agency who has charge of the financial records 
shall furnish to the Controller a report of all the financial transactions of the local agency during the preceding fiscal 
year. The report shall contain underlying data from audited financial statements prepared in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles if this data is available. The report shall be furnished within seven months 
after the close of each fiscal year and shall be in the form required by the Controller. A local agency shall submit to 
the Controller information on annual compensation, as described in subdivision (l) of Section 53892, for the previous 
calendar year no later than April 30th. The Town of Discovery Bay, CSD, and the Discovery Bay Public Financing 
Authority complies with this requirement on an annual basis and hires an independent auditing firm to perform the 
annual financial audit. 
 
On August 2, 2023, the Board of Directors approved contracting with Croce, Sanguinetti and Vander Veen, Inc. to 
perform the Annual Audit for Fiscal Year 2022-2023 for the Town of Discovery Bay Community Services District 
and the Discovery Bay Public Financing Authority, and provide the following for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2023: 
 

• Annual Audit for the Town of Discovery Bay, Community Services District. 
• Preparation and submission of the Town of Discovery Bay, CSD Financial Transaction Reports. 
• Preparation and submission of the Discovery Bay Public Financing Authority Financial Transaction Reports. 

 
Croce, Sanguinetti, and Vander Veen conducted the field work for the Annual Audit for Fiscal Year 2022-2023 in 
December 2023 and have subsequently prepared Audited Financial Statements for review by the Board.  In 
addition, Croce, Sanguinetti and Vander Veen prepared and submitted the Financial Transactions Records on 
January 31, 2024, as required for both the Town of Discovery Bay Community Services District and the Discovery 
Bay Public Financing Authority. 
 
 
Staff has reviewed the financial statements and recommend acceptance and approval by the Board of Directors.  
 
 
 

Town of Discovery Bay 
“A Community Services District” 

STAFF REPORT 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM: 
E1 



Page 2 of 2 
 

 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
 
 
PREVIOUS RELEVANT BOARD ACTIONS FOR THIS ITEM: 
 
August 2, 2023 - Approve Contracting with Croce, Sanguinetti & Vander Veen to Perform the Town of Discovery 
Bay’s Independent Audit for Fiscal Year 2022-23. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
 
1.  Town of Discovery Bay Community Services District Draft Financial Statements as of June 30, 2023. 
2.  Draft SAS No. 114 Letter. 
3.  Draft Management Advisory Letter. 
4.  Management Representation Letter as of March 7, 2024. 
  











































































































































Page 1 of 2 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Agenda Title: Discussion and Possible Action Regarding the Emergency Replacement of a Failed Retaining Wall 
  at the Community Center and Approving Resolution No. 2024-03, Adopting a CEQA Notice  
  of Exemption, Approving the Project and Directing Filing of the Notice of Exemption. 
 
Meeting Date: March 20, 2024 
 
Prepared By: Mike Yeraka, Projects Manager 
 
Submitted By: Dina Breitstein, General Manager 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 

a. Authorize the General Manager to execute any and all contracts, permits and documents necessary to 
replace the failed retaining wall and remove any trees that are interfering with the wall in accordance with 
the emergency provisions of the Town’s Purchasing Policy. 
 

b. Adopt Resolution 2024-03 approving the project and adopting a CEQA Notice of Exemption. 
 

c. Authorize Staff to file the attached Notice of Exemption with the County Clerk’s office. 
 
 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
 
Staff recently discovered that the retaining wall behind the tennis courts at the Community Center is failing as noted 
in the attached photo. The wall, shown in red on the aerial, is approximately 200-feet long and varies in height with 
the highest point being 4-feet above grade. Preliminary engineer’s estimates to replace the wall with a fully 
engineered pier and beam style wall were in the range of $300,000 plus the cost of tree removal, and design.  
 
Staff reached out to a several pave stone contractors who build Keystone style stacked block retaining walls. (See 
attached example photo). Most of them indicated that they do not do government work. One indicated that they 
wanted the Town to pay them $3,000 up front for an Architect to develop a drawing for them to prepare a price for 
the wall. Bayside Pavers was the only contractor who came out to measure up the project and they are developing 
a cost proposal to remove the interfering trees and install a new retaining wall. Preliminary indications from Bayside 
are that the cost of the new Keystone type wall will be about one-third the cost of the pier and beam type wall plus 
the cost of tree removal and permitting expenses.  
 
The County Building Department has indicated that a permit will be required for the project. 
 
In order to satisfy CEQA for the Project, the Board will need to adopt the attached Resolution 2024-03 adopting the 
attached CEQA exemptions, approving the project and directing filing of the Notice of Exemption. The CEQA 
exemptions are allowed given that this is an emergency project consisting of replacement or reconstruction of an 
existing facility. 
 
The final cost for the project have yet to be determined. 
 
 

Town of Discovery Bay 
“A Community Services District” 

STAFF REPORT 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM: 
E2 

 



Page 2 of 2 
 

Specific Board Action:  
 
It is recommended that the Board take the following Action: 
 

a. Authorize the General Manager to execute any and all contracts, permits and documents necessary to 
replace the failed retaining wall and remove any trees that are interfering with the wall in accordance with 
the emergency provisions of the Town’s Purchasing Policy. 
 

b. Adopt Resolution 2024-03 approving the project and adopting a CEQA Notice of Exemption. 
 

c. Authorize Staff to file the attached Notice of Exemption with the County Clerk’s office. 
 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
 
TBD 
 
 
PREVIOUS RELEVANT BOARD ACTIONS FOR THIS ITEM: 
 
The project was discussed at the January 17th and March 6th Parks and Recreation Committee meetings. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
1. Resolution 2024 - 03 
2. Notice of Exemption  
3. Photos 
 
 
 



 
 

1 

  
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

OF THE TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY, ADOPTING STATUTORY AND CATEGORICAL 
EXEMPTIONS FOR THE PURPOSES OF SATISFYING THE CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL 

QUALITY ACT, APPROVING THE EMERGENCY REPLACEMENT OF RETAINING WALL AT THE 
TOWN’S COMMUNITY CENTER, AND DIRECTING THE GENERAL MANAGER TO FILE A NOTICE 

OF EXEMPTION WITH THE CONTRA COSTA COUNTY CLERK. 
 

 
WHEREAS, the Town of Discovery Bay Community Services District (“District”) is a government 

agency organized and existing under the laws of the State of California; and 
 
WHEREAS, the District is in need of replacing a failed retaining wall at the Town’s Community 

Center as an emergency replacement; and 
 
WHEREAS, the District is the lead agency under the California Environmental Quality Act 

(“CEQA”) for the Community Center Retaining Wall Emergency Replacement Project (“Project”); and 
 

WHEREAS, the Project consists of replacing an existing failed retaining wall at the Community 
Center approximately 200-feet long and varies in height from one foot to four feet as well as removing 
the trees that are pushing on and interfering with the retaining wall; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Project falls within the Statutory Exemption to the California Environmental 
Quality Act (“CEQA”) pursuant to Section 15269(b)&(c) of the Guidelines for CEQA, California 
Administrative Code of Regulations, Title 14, Chapter 3, Article 18; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Project also falls within the Categorical Exemptions to the California 

Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”) pursuant to Section 15301 (Class 1 (d)) and Section 15302 (Class 
2) of the Guidelines for CEQA, California Administrative Code of Regulations, Title 14, Chapter 3, Article 
19; and 

 
WHEREAS, all other legal prerequisites to the adoption of this resolution have been met.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 

COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT DOES HEREBY RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1: The above recitals are true and correct. 
 
Section 2: The Notice of Exemption prepared for the Project has been completed in accordance 

with CEQA Guidelines. 
 
Section 3: The Board hereby approves the Project and adopts the Statutory and Categorical 

Exemptions for the Project. 
 
Section 4: The Board hereby authorizes the General Manager to take all actions necessary to 

replace the failed retaining wall under the emergency provisions of the Town’s Purchasing Policy. 
 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

 
RESOLUTION 2024 - 03 

 
 
 



 
 

2 

Section 5: The Board hereby directs the General Manager to prepare and file with the County 
Clerk of Contra Costa County for posting, a “Notice of Exemption” pursuant to California Administrative 
Code, Title 14, Chapter 3, Section 15062. 

 
Section 6: This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption. 
 
Section 7: The Board Secretary shall certify the adoption of this Resolution. 
 
 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED THIS 20th DAY OF March 2024. 
 
 

 
_________________________ 
Michael Callahan 
Board President 

 
I hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was duly adopted by the Board of Directors of the Town of 
Discovery Bay Community Services District at a regularly scheduled meeting, held on March 20, 2024, 
by the following vote of the Board: 

  
AYES: 

 NOES: 
 ABSENT: 

ABSTAIN: 
 
Attest: 

 
________________________________ 
Dina Breitstein 
Board Secretary 



Notice of Exemption 

TO: Contra Costa County From: Town of Discovery Bay CSD 
Clerk’s Office  1800 Willow Lake Rd. 
555 Escobar Street Discovery Bay, CA 94505 
Martinez, CA 94553 

Project Title: Community Center Failed Retaining Wall Emergency Replacement Project. 

Project Applicant: Town of Discovery Bay Community Services District (CSD), 1800 Willow Lake Road, 
Discovery Bay, CA 94505 

Project Location: 1601 Discovery Bay Blvd., Discovery Bay, CA 94505 

Project Location – City:  Town of Discovery Bay Project Location – County:  Contra Costa 

Description of Nature, Purpose and Beneficiaries of Project: 

Emergency replacement of an existing retaining wall at the Community Center, approximately 200-
feet long and varies in height from one foot to four feet as well as removing the trees that are pushing 
on and interfering with the retaining wall. The project is necessary in order to prevent damage to 
adjacent property and protect the existing tennis courts that serve the residents of Discovery Bay.  

Name of Public Agency Approving the Project:  Town of Discovery Bay Community Services District 

Name of Lead Agency Carrying Out the Project:  Town of Discovery Bay Community Services District 
Phone: 925-634-1131, 1800 Willow Lake Rd. Discovery Bay, CA 94505 

Exempt Status: (check one) 

___ Ministerial (Sec. 21080(b)(1); 15268); 

___ Declared Emergency (Sec. 21080(b)(3); 15269(a)); 

_X_ Emergency Project (Sec. 21080(b)(4); 15269(b)(c)); 

_X_ Categorical Exemption. State type and section number:  Replacement of Existing Facilities, 

pursuant to Guidelines for CEQA, Regulation Sec. 15301(d); 15302.  

E2-2



 
Reasons why project is exempt: 
 
15269(b) – Emergency repairs to publicly owned service facilities necessary to maintain service 
essential to the public health, safety, or welfare. 
 
15269(c) – Specific actions necessary to prevent or mitigate an emergency. 
 
15301(d) – Restoration or rehabilitation of deteriorated or damaged structures or facilities to meet 
current standards of public health and safety. 
 
15302 – Replacement or reconstruction of existing structures where the new structure will be located 
on the same site as the structure replaced and will have substantially the same purpose as the 
structure being replaced. 
 
 
Lead Agency  
Contact Person: Mike Yeraka, Projects Manager Telephone: 925-634-1131 
 
Attached is the certified document of exemption finding. 
 
 
 
Signature:___________________________________Date:__________ Title: Projects Manager 
 
 _X_ Signed by Lead Agency  ___ Signed by Applicant 
 
 
Attached: 
 
Resolution 2024-03 
 

E2-2



Failed Retaining Wall 

E2-3



 

Area in Red Showing Approximate Location 

of Failed Retaining Wall 
 

 

 

E2-3



 

Example Keystone Style Stacked Block 

Retaining Wall 

E2-3



Page 1 of 2 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Agenda Title: Discussion and Possible Action to Adopt a New Commercial Card Program. 
 
Meeting Date: March 20, 2024 
 
Prepared By: Margaret Moggia, Finance Manager 
 
Submitted By: Dina Breitstein, General Manager 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
Approve Resolution 2024-02 for the proposed adoption of a new Commercial Card Program. 
 
 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
 
Currently, the Town of Discovery Bay has approximately 12-14 commercial cards that are available to use for field 
supplies, travel, and minor administrative costs, and has allowed staff to make the necessary purchases to keep 
operations moving forward for the water/wastewater department, landscape, and community center.   
 
Staff are evaluating its Commercial Card Program to find an efficient and cost-effective program and recently met 
with Umpqua Bank, a CSDA sponsored affiliate, to learn more about their program.  To highlight the program for 
which we can use and scale the program as we chose:  
 

1. Administration – District can set up multiple users who can have different functions (all services – new, 
cancel, change limits to those that only have reporting role.); 

2. Virtual Cards – we can setup virtual cards that we can use at specific vendors or recurring charges and 
there is also cards that can be assigned for a particular person with limited dollars or time to use (similar to 
a prepaid card); 

3. Third-Party Integration – depending on how sophisticated we want to get, we could use for expense 
management. 

4. VISA protection – we receive the benefits from VISA should there be an unauthorized charge or need during 
travel; 

5. Annual Rebate – they offer a 1% rebate on annual spending that can be applied to payment or received as 
a check; and 

6. Growth in program – we can work with the bank on identifying other vendors that we use that could be paid 
by credit card versus check – this allows us to manage cash flow, adds protection, and also increase our 
rebate. 

 
Upon approval, Umpqua would complete an underwriting to establish the credit limit, build out the program and then 
the program can be rolled out to staff.  It is anticipated the process would be about 4-6 weeks to implement.   
 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
 

Town of Discovery Bay 
“A Community Services District” 

STAFF REPORT 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM: 
E3 



Page 2 of 2 
 

 
PREVIOUS RELEVANT BOARD ACTIONS FOR THIS ITEM: 
 
None. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
1. Draft Resolution 2024-02. 
2. Umpqua Presentation. 
  



       TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
     COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

      RESOLUTION NO. 2024-02 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY AUTHORIZING AGREEMENT WITH 

UMPQUA BANK COMMERCIAL CARD PROGRAM 

WHEREAS, Credit cards and purchasing cards are mechanisms for purchasing goods and services 
for the convenience of the TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY; and 

WHEREAS, the UMPQUA BANK has negotiated with TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY to provide a 
Purchasing Card Program for vendor payments, purchasing, travel or fleet transactions; and 

WHEREAS, UMPQUA BANK requires an application for credit approval , a resolution by the TOWN 
OF DISCOVERY BAY Governing Board, and TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY policy and procedures 
regarding the use of the credit cards; and 

WHEREAS, the TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY has a Standard Practice of procedures for using 
credit cards as required by the Program, 

NOW THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT HEREBY RESOLVES THE FOLLOWING ACTIONS: 

1. Authorize participation with Umpqua Bank in the Purchasing Card program;
2. Authorize the application to the Program for credit cards or purchasing cards;
3. Authorize the General Manager to execute any necessary Program agreements;
4. Authorize Finance Manager or General Manager to add new participants or cancel former

participants; and
5. The Board Secretary shall certify the adoption of this Resolution.

PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 20 day of March 2024. 

Michael Callahan 
Board President 

I hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was duly adopted by the Board of Directors of the Town of 
Discovery Bay Community Services District at a meeting, held March 20, 2024, by the following vote of the 
Board: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

Attest: 

Dina Breitstein 
Board Secretary 

E3-1



Umpqua Bank | Member FDIC Equal Housing Lender | NMLS 401867 | SBA Preferred Lender

UMPQ-PRIVATE

California Special Districts 
Association

Commercial Card Proposal

E3-2



UMPQ-PRIVATE

Umpqua Bank | Member FDIC Equal Housing Lender | NMLS 401867 | SBA Preferred Lender

Our One-Card Solution
Umpqua Bank Cards can be 
configured to meet any and all needs in 
a one card.

Customize Your Company Set-Up
• Travel & Expense Cards (merchant categories can be 

customized)

• Purchasing Cards (including Virtual Cards if needed)

• Fleet Cards (restricted to only fuel purchases)

• Automated payables & Integrated payment

A direct data feed to most third-party expense solutions is 
available

Concur, Expensify, Chrome River, and more.

Organization

Company 1

Test

Test

Test

LLC

Information Here

Company 2

E3-2



UMPQ-PRIVATE

Umpqua Bank | Member FDIC Equal Housing Lender | NMLS 401867 | SBA Preferred Lender

How We 
Protect You

Our commercial card consolidates the 
specialized features and benefits of 
purchasing, travel and fleet cards into 
one powerful and flexible business tool.

Visa Travel & Emergency Services
Emergency card replacement

Lost luggage assistance

Auto rental collision waiver

Travel accident insurance

Medical & legal referral

Emergency messaging

Visa Fraud Protection
Protection against unauthorized charges 

Ability to review and dispute transactions that may be 
fraudulent or authorized

Visa Liability 
Waiver
Protect your company against 
unauthorized use and charges 
by employees 

Up to $100,000 
per cardholder

Kelly Paxton, Author

“It’s no joke that the loss of trust is far more 
damaging than the loss of money.”

E3-2



UMPQ-PRIVATE

Umpqua Bank | Member FDIC Equal Housing Lender | NMLS 401867 | SBA Preferred Lender

Custom Controls 
Made for Your Team

With unlimited administrator access, 
make changes, get updates, and manage 
data in real-time, whenever and wherever 
you need it most. 

What you can do:

• Manage cardholder limits (temporary or permanent)

• Order new cards

• Dispute transactions (if needed)

• Establish card blocks or close cards

• View statements and transaction details

• View authorizations and pending transactions

• View, sort, customize, and download transaction 

reports with detail

• Apply Merchant Category Code (MCC) restrictions 

at company or card level

What yo

• Manage

• Order n

• Dispute

• Establis

• View sta

• View au

• View, so

reports 

• Apply M

at comp

E3-2



UMPQ-PRIVATE

Customize Your Company Set-Up
• Travel and expense cards — merchant categories can be customized.
• Purchasing Cards — including Virtual Cards.
• Fleet Cards  —restricted to only fuel purchases.
• Automated payables & integrated payment.

Mobile Wallet
Easy to shop online and in store 
with instant approvals and tap-to-go 
technology. Lighten your pockets! 
With the mobile wallet, you reduce 
the need to carry physical cards.

Contactless Card
It’s fast and easy to use—just 
tap and go on applicable card 
readers. One-time codes ensure 
each unique transaction is 
secure. Reduce your contact 
with people and surfaces.

Visa Commercial Pay
Request and deploy virtual 
cards on-demand. Digitally 
issue virtual cards to employee 
and contractor’s mobile devices.
Centrally manage business 
travel spend.

E3-2



UMPQ-PRIVATE

Instant Issue
Virtual cards for vendors, 
travelers and contractors

Flexibility and Control

• Users can request cards from their phones

• Approvals by default, hierarchy, or combination

• Unique virtual cards sent for single or multi use

• Spend limitations can be set to include transaction, 

time frame, merchant types

• Capture required coding and receipts via the app

• Control centrally or distribute “pools” of funds to 

project, department, or task managers

• Company level controls and reporting via web portal

Digital

• Mobile Wallets-Apple Pay, Google Pay, Samsung Pay

• Instant issuance of card to the app

• Push the card to phone wallet for tap to pay functionality (q1 2022)

Real-time notifications 
to remind users to take 
pictures or their 
receipts as they spend.

Add a receipt with a 
picture or forward it 
from an email.

Review transactions 
for each card.

E3-2



UMPQ-PRIVATE

Umpqua Bank | Member FDIC Equal Housing Lender | NMLS 401867 | SBA Preferred Lender

Single Use & 
Adjustable Limit 
Options Single Use Accounts (SUA)

Revolving pool of accounts

Minimum dormancy 90 days

One to one reconciliation

Industry best practice

Adjustable Limit Accounts 
(Lodged Cards)

Dedicated vendor card number

Demanded by some vendors

E3-2



UMPQ-PRIVATEUMPQ-PRIVATE

Umpqua Bank | Member FDIC Equal Housing Lender | NMLS 401867 | SBA Preferred Lender

Customized to Your Brand
Create a unique expression of your company and brand 
by designing your own card from edge to edge.

Benefits

• Excite your teams and create a thoughtful employee 

experience with branded employee credit cards

• Create brand recognition outside of your organization 

whenever your team uses the credit card

• Easy to recognize so your employees know they’re 

using the right payment methods at the right time

E3-2



UMPQ-PRIVATE

Umpqua Bank | Member FDIC Equal Housing Lender | NMLS 401867 | SBA Preferred Lender

Revenue Share 
Opportunity

Umpqua bank offers CSDA members competitive revenue 
share designed to reward your current activity and achieve 
your company’s growth and implementation goals.

Combined annual spend

1.00%
if annual combined spend 

exceeds $2,000,000

1.00%

The revenue is paid annually.  Deposited to an Umpqua Bank checking account or credited to commercial card billing account. 

E3-2



Umpqua Bank | Member FDIC Equal Housing Lender | NMLS 401867 | SBA Preferred Lender

UMPQ-PRIVATE

Thank
you.

E3-2



I1



I2



I2


	Agenda - BOD 03 20 24
	OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
	OF THE TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY
	REGULAR MEETING 7:00 P.M.
	TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY A COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

	C1 - DRAFT Minutes - BOD 03 06 24---Approved by DB
	OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
	OF THE TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY
	REGULAR MEETING 7:00 P.M.
	TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY A COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

	E1 - FY 2023 Audited financial statements
	E1-1 - E1-4 Scanned Audit Backup Docs
	E2 - Staff Report Retaing Wall - Mike Y.
	E2-1 - Resolution-2024-03 Comm Ctr Retaining Wall Cat Exemption
	PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED THIS 20th DAY OF March 2024.
	Michael Callahan
	AYES:
	NOES:
	ABSENT:
	ABSTAIN:
	Dina Breitstein

	E2-2 - Notice of Exemption-Retaining Wall
	E2-3 - Retaining Wall Photos for BOD 3-20-24 Meeting
	E3 - Staff Report Commercial Card Program v2
	E3-1 - RESOLUTION NO.  -  UMPQUA Bank Credit Cards V1
	E3-2 - Umpqua Bank Presentation.PACKET
	I1 - BUSD - February 1, 2024 - Director Kevin Graves
	I2 - BUSD - February 22, 2024 - Director Kevin Graves
	E2-1 - Resolution-2024-03 Comm Ctr Retaining Wall Cat Exemption.pdf
	PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED THIS 20th DAY OF March 2024.
	Michael Callahan
	AYES:
	NOES:
	ABSENT:
	ABSTAIN:
	Dina Breitstein

	C2-1 - RFA 032024.pdf
	ALLTotal




